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Eternal Father, bless our land,
Guard us with Thy mighty hand,
Keep us free from evil powers,
Be our light through countless hours.
To our leaders, Great Defender,
Grant true wisdom from above.

Justice, truth, be ours forever,
Jamaica, land we love.

Jamaica, Jamaica, Jamaica, land we love.

Teach us true respect for all,

Stir response to duty’s call,
Strengthen us the weak to cherish,
Give us vision lest we perish.
Knowledge send us, Heavenly Father,
Grant true wisdom from above.

Before God and All mankind.

I pledge the love and loyalty of my heart
The wisdom and courage of my mind,
The strength and vigour of my body
in the service of my fellow citizens.

[ promise to stand up for justice,
Brotherhood and Peace,
to work diligently and creatively,
To think generously and honestly,
so that,
Jamaica may, under God,
increase in beauty,
fellowship and prosperity,
and play her part in advancing the welfare

of the whole human race.
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— Profile —
The Management Institute for National Development (MIND) is the
Government of Jamaica's pre-eminent and preferred public service
leadership development and management training institute in Jamaica,
serving the Caribbean. The role of MIND is crucial to the transformation
of the public service in Jamaica and the Caribbean region.

The MIND Mission is to provide the public service with quality leadership
and management training, supporting services and outreach, that will
enable the sector, to sustain a culture of enterprise, efficiency and
responsiveness to the public.

MIND offers an exclusive focus on programmes, supporting services and
outreach that are strategically developed to respond effectively to
enhancing the professionalism and performance quality of public service
professionals towards transforming the public sector into one “which puts
the public's interest first, and in which valued and respected professionals
deliver high quality services efficiently and effectively.

MIND and its predecessor organisations have been providing training for
over 30 years and is now registered with the University Council of Jamaica
(UCJ) as a tertiary level institution. MIND's training programmes/courses
are offered at the Certificate, Diploma, Associate of Science Degree and
Post Graduate Diploma levels. Over 135 programmed courses are
scheduled to run throughout the year, in a customised format through Your
Place or MIND, The Caribbean MIND, and via the Internet through MIND
Online. MIND's training encompasses all areas of human resource
development with an emphasis on management and leadership.

MIND encourages collaborations and partnerships with local, regional
and international learning organisations and donor agencies, to strengthen
its capacity to provide a coordinated and integrated approach to deliver
first class management and leadership development training to public
service professionals. MIND Consultancy also responds to the call from
public sector organisations, to provide a dynamic range of professional
expertise and service.

MIND Outreach services and programmes include Conferences, Public

Lectures, Quarterly Friday Policy Forums, and Caribbean Journal of

Public Sector Management, to stimulate public awareness of issues of
national, regional and global importance and providing a forum for the
exchange of information and ideas that results in improved quality of
thought and behaviours.

The Management Institute for National Development (MIND) is
committed to providing the knowledge base required for globally
competent and ethical public service professionals to advance the
fulfillment of their organisation's mandate, in the interest of creating and
sustaining national and regional growth and development and evolve into
becoming world-class exemplars of good governance in the global
community.

MIND Stakeholders

MIND has many stakeholders with different
interests, influences, and expectations.

» MIND Community
- Administrative Staff and Faculty (Resident
and Associate)
- Participants \ Learning Partners

» Public Sector
- Office of the Prime Minister
- Cabinet Office
- Office of the Services Commission
- Ministries of Government
- Agencies of Government
- Parliament
- Jamaica Civil Service Association
- Parastatals

» Other Sectors
- Private Sector
- NGO's
- Civic

» Strategic Partners
- Education, Training and Development
Institutions
- Development and Funding Organisations
- Suppliers of Goods and Services

» Caribbean Reach
- Public Sector and allied Stakeholders

» Citizens
- Local
- Regional
- World

MIND Reach

» MIND Kingston Campus
235A Old Hope Road,
Kingston 6, Jamaica
Tel: (876) 927-1761 | Fax: (876) 977-4311
E-mail: customerservice@mind.edu.jm

» MIND Mandeville Campus
5 Perth Road, Mandeville
Manchester, Jamaica
Tel: (876) 962-2183/0428
Fax: (876) 962-1008
E-mail: customerservicemmle@mind.edu.jm

»  MIND Website: www.mind.edu.jm




The core values that guide the actions, transactions

and behaviours of the MIND Team

i astomer-focus

We strive to understand and meet the needs of our
customers first, and at all times to appreciate their
value, their business and their importance to the
success of MIND

CY :
Shnesty & Integrity
We pledge to be upright, truthful, upstanding and

above board in our behaviour and interactions, and to
be ethical in our conduct and dealings

@gliability & Trustworthiness

We will ensure that the quality of our work, standards
and performance will be high, steady, consistent and
dependable

@afessionalism

We embrace the highest set of standards, strive to be
experts in our respective areas of training and
development, maintaining relevance and competence
through consultations, continuous learning, practice
and in tune with the changing needs of the public
service

%mwork & Cooperation
As professionals, we work independently but support
each other, and work together as a team, where each
one helps the other to advance and progress the
Mission of MIND

g@sults-Oriented

We are driven by performance and solid results, by our
own and the results and impacts of the clients and
customers we serve

Vision
Statement

To be the pre-eminent and preferred public
service leadership  development and
management  training institution in
Jamaica, serving the Caribbean

Mission
Statement

To provide public servants with quality
leadership development options,
management  training, support and
outreach services that sustain a culture of
enterprise, efficiency and organisational
responsiveness to the publics they serve
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The Power f he MIND

Reaching, Extending, Achieving Excellence

The MIND is very powerful
It is unlimited in potential . . .
Once you begin to understand the reach, capacity and ability of the MIND
to create and sustain positive change,
so much professional and leadership success can be achieved for the individual,
the organisation and the society

The imperatives of the new environment impacting the public sector, as well as the education/training
industry nationally and regionally, with all the challenges of globalisation - economic, political, social,
cultural and environmental - has compelled the Management Institute for National Development
(MIND) to apply all due diligence, with a greater degree of urgency, to strengthen our mission to be the
preferred and pre-eminent public service training institution. In leading the way, as adviser, consultant,
developer, presenter, broker, evaluator, and monitor, of human resource development programmes and
services, that result in the full professionalisation of the public service and effectively impact nation
building and citizen satisfaction.

The exigencies of our current realities, such as new and emerging customer needs, increasing
competition, fiscal restraints, and the urgent need to create more relevance and greater value to our
service position; as providers of quality training interventions, to serve as a critical link in the process of
enabling Government to respond to the demands and dynamics of a modern and efficient public service.
This has lead MIND to be currently engaged in the serious process of strategic repositioning.

The mutuality of our interest in working towards securing for the public sector, quality leadership and
management standards that impact performance outcomes of the service that Government provides for
the citizenry; compel all our attention towards the creation. facilitation and/or development of the kind
of MIND training, that demands interest, utilization and application, that drives professionalism,
engineers the best performance outcomes and guidesa nation towards achieving excellence in all areas.

MIND's training opportunities include over 135 scheduled courses/programmes, distance learning via
MIND Online, customised training through Your Place or MIND, a dynamic range of professional
support services through MIND Consulting services and important outreach that support learning such
as Conferences, Public Lectures, Quarterly Friday Policy Forums, and the Caribbean Journal of Public
Sector Management. Simultaneously, MIND is in the process of developing a superior range of
management and leadership development programmes/courses that are aligned appropriately with the
strategic objectives of the public sector and other allied non-Government stakeholders, to underpin the
creation of an accountable, innovative and responsive public service.

We look forward to your full engagement with, and support of, the emerging new MIND.
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CEO’s Message

he MIND mission statement challenges us to provide the
public service with quality leadership and management
training, supporting services and outreach that will enable
the sector, to sustain a culture of enterprise, efficiency and
responsiveness to the public. This is an ambitious ideal, and
honouring it requires that we focus keen and steadfast attention
on the dynamic dimensions of our work that anticipates and
responds effectively to the current needs and realities of all
our stakeholders, simultaneous with undertaking strategic
planning and activities engineered towards building Institutional
capacity and capability to sustain our continued relevance
and viability.

Over the past year under review, 2008-2009, that is precisely
what we have done. We have together, as a brilliant MIND
team, committed our leadership, management, technical,
administrative and support services expertise and rich cache
of other resources, to transform plans into successful performance
outcomes, and shape strategic and long-term vision, into a
tangible plan of action that will serve as a compass, to guide
our exciting journey into a future of diverse needs and
aspirations, great challenges, and wonderful opportunities.

This Report opens up the MIND to your scrutiny, of the
Agency’s performance in all areas, throughout the past year;
brings into sharp focus highlights of some important
achievements; and shares with you a summary “peek”into the
exciting journey leading to the strategic repositioning of the
MIND.

This journey into the strategic repositioning of the MIND, was
developed against the background of the milestone
achievement of MIND's ten year success as a pioneer
Executive Agency of the Government of Jamaica.

Given the highly competitive environment in which we
operate and the exigencies of our global economic and
environmental realities, we thought it prudent to mark this
outstanding stage of our journey with a thorough review and
analysis of our capacity and capabilities; examine all aspects of
our operations - all the areas in which the organisation is
strong and confident, and those areas where we definitely
need to tighten and strengthen; critically assess several
scenarios of both opportunities and challenges and

“As our reach continues to expand

and extend, locally, regionally and
internationally, there is growing
confirmation that our work is creating
impact and that we create a difference
and add value”

Ruby Brown

il Chief Executive Officer
Management Institute
for National Development

consider the realities, trends and their short and long
term implications;and in particular, we deliberated
on the expectations of our stakeholders, and how
best to help them face the many challenges
and opportunities that lie ahead.

Through this Strategic plan therefore, MIND will be
better empowered to successfully design, develop and
deliver quality training, transfer cutting-edge
knowledge, influence the application of positive
attributes and coping skills, at the highest
professional standard, to motivate and enhance
public sector professionals and leaders.

In the final analysis, we strive to position ourselves
strategically, to become an organisation with a more
distinctive brand of quality, that is highly
competitive and compels buying attention, is strong,
efficient, effective and a powerful catalytic force in the
transformation of the public sector.

We celebrate the value of partnership and collaboration
with all our stakeholders who have underpinned our
successes. As our reach continues to expand and
extend, locally, regionally and internationally, there is
growing confirmation that our work is creating
impact and that we create a difference and add value.

| am pleased and proud to be the team leader of a
highly professional, well-motivated, and team-driven
organisation. | thank you all for your support and your
continuing interest, engagement, involvement and
commitment of will and resources to the process of
fulfilling our mandate in the best interest of our
people and nation. | know | can count on your

unwavering dedication and MINDset for excellence.

N 5
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Executive

Ruby Brown
Chief Executive Officer

Samanthi De Mel
Director Finance & Resources

Glynis Salmon
Director Marketing and Communications

Jacqueline Solomon-Wallder
Director of Learning

Management

Jessica Banton
Human Resource Administrator

Tameca Brown
Regional Manager

Lesley Ann Dixon- Ennevor
MIND Online Manager

Shawnette Henry
Marketing and Logistics Officer

Ayisha Green
Partnerships Manager

Suzette Livermore-East
Procurement and Asset Management Officer

Shawn McEwan
Promotions Development Specialist

Nova McLeod
Customer Service Manager

Warren Porteous
Information Technology Manager

Zoya Salmon-Powell
Operations Administrator

Diana Simms
Internal Auditor

Ann-Marie Smith
Manager DLPD

Jacqueline Swaby
Accountant

John Tracey
Manager DFOA
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Administrative

Christine Benjamin
Product Quality Coordinator
Brenaie Bonner
Administrative Assistant
Elaine Christie-Morgan
Executive Assistant
Winston Dyer
Reprographics Assistant

lvy Fender

Senior Learning Administration
Assistant

Kodianne Hall

Senior Customer Service
Representative (Acting)
Keilia Livermore

Human Resource Assistant

Simone McGowan-Carty
Administrative Assistant

Orville Mighty

Learning Coordinator

Kirk Nelson

Information Technology Administrator

Marguerite Reid-Plummer
Cust. Service Rep/Reception Assistant
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Fericka Rhoden
Customer Service Representative

Evettie Ricketts

Accounting Assistant

Audrey Ridge

Research & Library Assistant
Dwight Simpson

Delivery & Facilities Assistant
Donna Smith

Learning Administration Assistant
Stacey-Ann Spalding
Customer Service Representative
Nadia Stewart

Learning Administration Assistant
Zeretha Swaby

Learning Coordinator
Jonathan Thompson
Facilities & Maintenance Coordinator
Debie Walcott

Customer Service Representative
Henry Walker

Accounting Assistant

Melody Young
Marketing Assistant

Ancillary

Sophia Bucknor
Oftice Attendant

Melvin Dobson
Grounds/Maintenance Attendant

Michelle Gayle
Office Attendant

Shevane Gordon
Grounds/Maintenance Attendant

Andrea Hyman
Office Attendant

Julian Martin
Office Attendant

Sebena Moulton
Office Attendant

Thomas Reid
Grounds/Maintenance Attendant

Faculty (Resident)

Leadership and
Professional Development

Natasha Gordon-Miller
Senior Learning Facilitator

L loyd Pascoe N
Senior Learning Facilitator

Georgia Sinclair_
Senior Learning Facilitator

Finance and Organisational
Administration

Jean Forbes. .
Senior Learning Facilitator

Errol Gardner
Learning Facilitator

Naomi Jackson-Forrester
Acting Senior Learning Facilitator

Uchenna Godson Nwude
Senior Learning Facilitator

Reckonel Simpson _
Senior Learning Facilitator
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Pioneer Executive Agency of the Government of Jamaica - 1999-2009

THE CABINET OFFICE )

he Cabinet Office sits at the
heart of Government with an
overall aim of making
Government more effective
by providing a strong centre. It
provides a clear mechanism for
coordination and coherence across
Government; brings together the
support to Cabinet decision-making;
setting of strategic direction; strategic
human resource management
functions; and enables linkages
between them.

The Cabinet Office also provides an
important counter-balance to the
other key central function of the
Ministry of Finance.

inet Office

providing
entre”

Public Sector
Modernisation )

Division

The role of the Pubic Sector
Modernisation Division (PSMD) is
to drive forward the implementation
by all departments and other
agencies of the Government of
Jamaica, the Agenda for modernising
Government, for improving the
quality, coherence and responsiveness
of public services, and for promoting
a strong and professionally
well-managed public sector,
capable of enabling and facilitating
the achievement of the stated
National goals.

The Division’s Objectives)
are to:

= Enable Government ministries,
departments and agencies to
develop and deliver high quality
integrated public services,
programmes and regulations which
meet the needs of customers.

® Establish mechanisms for effective
decision making, human and
financial resource management,
coordination  and  performance
management across Government,
streamline cross-cutting processes
for efficiency and the creation of
new and better services.

mThe on-going Public Sector
Modernisation Programme has lead
to operational and institutional
improvements as well as efficiency
gains. Some achievements of this

earlier programme include
institutional strengthening and
the creation of Executive

Agencies (EA) and modernised
entities, which operate under
significant delegation of authority
and according to well-defined
performance criteria.

Portfolio Agencies )

Various Agencies have also been

placed under the Cabinet Office:

e Management Institute for National
Development (MIND)

e Registrar General’s Department

e Jamaica Information Service

e Companies Office of Jamaica

e Administrator General’s Department

e National Environment And Planning

Agency

National Works Agency

National Land Agency

Jamaica Promotions

Planning Institute of Jamaica

Jamaica Customs

Ministry of Transport and Works

The Public Sector
Modernisation Vision ancy

Strategy 2002-2012

The vision for the next decade of Public

Sector Reform in Jamaica outlines a

ten year plan which guides how the

public sector should function in the

new millennium.The main

components are:

e Sustainable Development

e Governance

e Values & Principles and Regeneration
of the Public Service

e Customer Service

e Resource Management and Accountability

e Managing People

e Performance Management

e Technology

The Medium Term Action
Plan (MTAP) 2008-2012

MTAP identifies strategies for
improving results-based management
across Government and forms the
basis for continued implementation
of the Modernisation Programme
over the next five (5) years.

Focusing on Service Delivery
Improving Governance and Accountability
Managing for Results

Improving Change Management

and Communication




The Jamaica

Civil Service Association
Founded in 1919

overnments around the world

have come to realize that

human resources have a crucial
role in meeting the challenges of
public service and global competition.
The rapid changes in the field of
work and working environments in
recent years, have caused great
concern to the workforce. The
changing social, technical, political,
economic, spiritual, and business
environmental conditions have
brought about the need for radical
deconstruction and reconstruction
in the planning, policy direction and
decision of Governments and
organisations.

In marking another milestone in the
of MIND, it is important that we
wledge the work of and
ip relationship with, one of
keholders, the Jamaica

ssociation (JCSA).

in acknowledging
maica Civil Service
ing a pioneer lobby
tablishment of Civil
, aimed primarily at :
g specific skills in an effort
de Civil Servants with the

ity to do their work effectively
arting to Civil Servants a sense

f purpose and self discipline to
enable them to attain group objectives

The Government of Jamaica, with
the support of the JCSA, sought then
to bridge the skill gap within the
Civil Service, through a collective of
in-house training and Government

L

training institutions - (the Adminis-
trative Staff College, the Finance and
Accounts College of Training, the
Secretarial and Clerical College and
the Mandeville Training Centre) —
together providing training in a
variety of areas, including: Human
Resources Management, Project
Management, Performance, Budgeting,
Accounting, and Organizational
Management .In 1994, the above
four specialized training facilities,
merged to form the Management
Institute for National Development
(MIND)

As MIND continues to partner with
the JCSA in championing the task
of renewing the commitment of
the public sector workforce,
towards achieving excellence in
the quest for the delivery of quality
public services, it is important to
note that a significant percentage
of MIND’s Associate Faculty and
Consultants are drawn from the
professional  experience  and
expertise of members of the JCSA.

The power of the MIND is ever
evolving, to become more responsive
towards the fulfillment of national
development goals. We expect
and are prepared to embrace and
utilise the opportunities for even
more dynamic partnership and
collaboration between MIND and
the JCSA, over the next year and
beyond.

MIND applauds the work of the
Jamaica Civil Service Association
(JCSA), throughout its 89 year
history,and we are, as the Government
of Jamaica's pre-eminent and
preferred public service leader-
ship development and manage-
ment training Institute in Jamaica,
committed to the process of
enabling the success of the JCSA

““
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FOUNDATION AND DIRECTION

Growing, Developing, Evolving...

in:

"Achieving excellence in a resolute quest
for quality public services, is the vision
statement we have chosen to guide the
JCSA’s activities . By constantly remind-
ing ourselves of the need for the delivery
of quality public services, we are guaran-
teeing and demonstrating the resolve,
that it is not just a vision that we have for
the public sector, but more importantly,
we are prepared to make it a part of our
daily living ™

[ Wayne St. A. Jones - President of the JCSA]

JCSA Mission Statement: \
The Jamaica Civil Service Association
seeks to uphold the highest qualities of
professional service to the nation through
the guarantee of a highly trained workforce
of competent and committed persons whose
legitimate interests are safeguarded and
affirmed through membership in the
organisation. )

JCSA Aims and Objectives

e We seek to constantly improve the social
and economic well-being of our members

e We seek to enhance the esteem in which
public sector workers are held by our
internal and external clients, by identifying
and exploiting opportunities for improve-
ments in the service we provide through the
teamwork, and by the application of appro-
priate and up to date tools and technologies
in suitable environments

e We constantly seek to identify an exploit
opportunities for personal and professional
development and advancement of our
members

e We seek to foster, establish and maintain
fraternal relationships and affiliations with
other local and international organizations
of similar aims and objectives to provide
educational opportunities and mutual
support in times of need

e We seek to foster and enhance the
esprit-de-corps among our members and

wider public service
J

The JCSA Motto: \
Duro de Cortice Fructus Quam Dulcis -
[How sweet the fruit the hard rind yields]

AND 11
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EVOLVING
TRANSFORMING

ENGINEERING PERFORMANCE EXCELLENCE

he Management Institute for National Development (MIND) was
established on 1 Feb, 1994 with a mandate and structure to
amalgamate four independently operated training entities:

Administrative Staff College (Norbrook)

Finance and Accounts College of Training (Hope Road)
Secretarial and Training College (Duke Street)
Mandeville Outreach Training Centre

In 1999 the Government of Jamaica’s Public Sector Modernisation thrust
lead to a Cabinet decision to transform MIND into an Executive Agency of
Government and to become one of four pioneer Executive Agencies.
Besides being an efficiency measure, the decision was aimed at raising the
level and capacity of the civil service to implement and fast track the public
sector modernisation programme.

MIND performed this role with comparatively high success, achieving both
recognition and acknowledgement of key stakeholders and client
ministries as well as gaining the respect and alliances of a number of
benchmark public service training institutions internationally. In its new
dispensation, MIND is tasked to implement the government HR training policy
for the public service and to advise Government where necessary of strategic
changes and requirements for effective public service training.

Since the inception as an Executive Agency, MIND has achieved steady and
significant growth in all areas of operations, year after year. This is particu-
larly evident in the volume of enrollment, which has grown nearly three-
fold, and which has contributed in large measure to the revenue increase
for the Agency, from $27Min 1999, to $121M in 2009 (360% increase).

In the early years, MIND’s revenue was largely generated from a suite of
scheduled programmes, gradually evolving to emerge as a respected
source for Customised Programmes by target groups in Jamaica and the
Caribbean. The dynamic nature of the ever-expanding MIND has lead to
further diversity and variety of the delivery modality of MIND programmes,
resulting in Distance Learning options via MIND On-Line

In spite of the economic challenges that beset the national economy, MIND
has consistently recorded, each year, the signal performance success of
maintaining its expenditure within budget and increasing income.

Throughout its ten-year history, MIND has achieved benchmark status for
excellence as a public service training institution, growing in local, regional
and international recognition and acclaim among key stakeholders —
Government ministries, agencies and parastatals and other groups. In addi-
tion to which, MIND has also succeeded in winning the respect and partner-
ship alliance of a number of leading development and donor organisations
and benchmark public service training institutions from around the world.

““Since the inception as an Executive Agency,
MIND has achieved steady and significant growth
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he strength and
endurance of a construct
is dependent entirely on
the quality of the foundation.

MIND salutes the distinguished
leadership, management and
administrative support of the
cadre of professionals who laid
the foundation and raised the
structure of excellence upon
which MIND continues to grow
and flourish.

Cabinet Office, to which body
MIND reports, Office of the
Services Commission, ministries
of Government, the successive
Advisory Boards, the Jamaica
Civil Service Association and
allied partners, have together
built strong pillars on which
MIND is now elevated and
stands recognised and
respected as a valuable
contributor to the development
of the public service, the
nation and region. The
leadership of Dr. The Hon.
Carlton Davies, former Cabinet
Secretary and champion of
public service reform and mod-
ernisation; Maria Jones, Pioneer
Executive Agency CEO, and
John Tracey former Administrative
Head of Finance and Accounts
College of Training (FA.C.T) and

| continuing to serve the MIND

as Head of the Division of
Finance and Accounts for over
thirty years (30), is especially
noteworthy and must be lauded.

The outstanding corps
of brilliant MIND-trained
professionals who have
served and some who
continue to serve
throughout the public
service and beyond, who
have, by the quality
of their performance,
contributed to the
emerging transformation
of the public service, are
testimony to the vision,
energy expertise and
commitment of the MIND
team.

“The strength and
endurance of a
construct is
dependent entirely on
the quality of the
foundation”

Lilliant MINDS

10-35 Years Service

« Winston Dyer | 35 years
« John Tracey | 32 years

« Jonathan Thompson | 29 years

+ Naomi Jackson-Forrester | 19 years
+ Nova McLeod | 18 years

« Evettie Ricketts | 14 years

« Elaine Christie-Morgan | 14 years
« vy Fender | 13 years

+ Ruby Brown | 10 years

+ Christine Benjamin | 10 years

« Suzette Livermore-East | 10 years
+ Debie Walcott | 10 years

+ Melvin Dobson | 10 years
+ Andrea Hyman | 10 years
+ Sophia Bucknor | 10 years
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1999 - 2009
10 Years

of
Growth

and
Outstanding
Achievement
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Accreditatio
Institutional Pa

= University Council of Jamaica (UCJ)

Accreditation

- MIND is registered with the UCJ as a
tertiary level Institution

- Increase in MIND Programmes
Accredited by the UCJ:
Post Graduate Diploma- Human
Resource Management
Post Graduate Diploma -General
Management Programme
Post Graduate Diploma - Public Sector Senior
Management Development Programme

Post Graduate Diploma-Tax Audit and Revenue
Administration

Associate Science Degree-Human
Resource Management
Associate Science Degree- Accounting

- In preparation for submission to
UCJ for Accreditation:
Supplies Management

Supervisory Management

= The Joint Board of
Undergraduate Studies of the

University of the West Indies (UWI)
approves matriculation of graduates of
MIND’s Associate of Science Degree in Accounting tO
UWI's Bachelor of Science Degree Programmes

= The National Council on Technical and
Vocational Education and Training

(NCTVET) approves accreditation for MIND
administered Certificate in Administrative
Management (CAM) - Levels 1 and 2 COUISes

16 /D

New and Expande

MIND Program
Courses Intro

Associate of Science Degree in Human Resource
ail Management

Associate of Science Degree in Management Studies
Associate of Science Degree in Marketing

Performance Management and Appraisal

Systems
Public Sector Senor Management
Development Programme  F
“op 7 Diploma and
Ethics in Government -
Certificate Courses

Environmental Stewardship

Customs Regulations & Documentation
Corporate and Strategic Planning

Post Graduate Diploma in Human Resource Management

Successful F
Perform

Since becoming an executive agency, MIND
has consistently  recorded successful

performance outcomes in meeting and
surpassing financial targets and

registering growth in revenue, each
year, for ten (10) years.

Dynamic Social
and Expanded Le

To further strengthen MIND’s commitment to
providing the knowledge base required for
Creating and sustaining national and regional
growth and development and the thrust
towards becoming world-class exemplars of
good governance in the global community,
MIND coordinates and hosts a dynamic range
of special events designed to provide a forum
for the general public and select target groups
from the public and other sectors to engasge in
discourse on pertinent issues, and benefit from
the strategic opportunity provided, to
interface with each other and share in a
dynamic exchange of ideas and connections
with  far-reaching and invaluable outcomes.
These include:

- Quarterly Policy Forums

- Conferences

- Workshops

- Public Lectures

- Consultations

- Think-Tanks
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1988-7009
10 Years

of
Growth

and
Outstanding
Achievement The MIND has expanded its reach into the Caribbean
among stakeholders, primarily within the public sector,
partnering with the Governments of St .Lucia and
Montserrat to deliver customised learning solutions.

& E-MIND Powering [
5 Learning via

This training delivery modality was developed
against the background of the modernisation goals
of the public sector, with particular reference to the
Government of Jamaica’s technolosy skill develop-
ment and utilisation emphasis, to create greater
access to training that develops professional
competencies and efficiencies. MIND Online serves as
a portal to MIND’s web-based training and access
to courses and programmes

JiND

MILE-

S MIND Customi
i Learning Solut

Most of MIND’s programmed courses are also
offered in a flexible customised format, which
is called Your Place or MIND. In this
customised mode, training is organised for
groups of staff of a specific organisation.
Course schedule and location are determined
on the basis of client-convenience and
content may be modified to suit the client’s
specific needs.

Your Place or
MIND provides
customised
training
solutions, that
respond specifically to the organisations
training needs, customised how, when and
where the client needs it. It adapts MIND’s
current courses, as well as develop new
courses to meet organisations human
resource development needs. With Your place
or MIND, convenience is the rule, not the
exception.

aiND
MILE-
STONES

MIND Public-

S v-‘{ The MIND Caribbean Journal of Public
Sector Management (CJPSM) iS @
biannual publication, with
sponsorship from the caribbean
Centre for Development Administration
(CARICAD). The CJPSM, provides a
lively, current and dynamic forum
for the exchange of information,
ideas, and enquiry on public
sector management issues,
development and practice
throughout the region.

Each issue of cpsm, presents a well-researched,
credible discourse on challenges and achievements,
new directions and innovations, expectations and
impact, experiences and practices in leadership and
management, throughout the Caribbean Public Sector.

The cipsm assists with the process of developing the
quality of public sector professionals, bolstered by the
background of review and examination, from a muilti-
disciplinary perspective, of policy formulation, monitor-
ing and transformation of the Caribbean Public Sector.

The cipsm is essential reading for public, statutory and
private sector professionals, academics, researchers
and students, and is an important inclusion in public and
private libraries as critical reference  material.

MIND Rea

Jamaica
Caribbean
- www.mind.edu.jm
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10 Years
of
Growth
and
Outstanding
Achievement

MIND Partner
1[1] and Collabor

One of the many ways in which MIND is able to achieve its

successes and move forward purposefully towards the fulfillment

of its mandate is via the tremendous support garnered through

partnerships and collaborations with stakeholder organisations
nd individuals.

Beyond the development and delivery of management and
leadership development programmes, professional services and
outreach, MIND explores and continues to drive and enersise all
our partnerships.

The quality of the partnerships we forge, will determine the
outcome of our desire to protect and promote the highest
standards of professionalism in the public service; and our
commitment to ensuring that our people are provided with the
most efficient and effective quality of public service to enable
them to share equitably in economic and social benefits.

Over the years the MIND has forged and leveraged critical
partnerships with local, regional and international Governments
and organisations in support of capacity building and institutional
strengthening. Some of these are:

The Canadian International Development Agency
Commonwealth Secretariat

United Kingdom School of Government

Canada School of Public Service

Commonwealth Association for Public Administrators
Centre for Creative Leadership

Caribbean Centre for Development Administration
(CARICAD)

*  Ministry of Public Administration’s Public Service Academy
(Trinidad and Tobago)

18 /MAND

Nz

£

CAPAM

The Jamaica
Civil Service Association

ﬁ% thecormonwea lth @

58
%W"{% serving a new generation

S

SKILLFOCUS

COMSULTANEY

Canadian School Ecole de la fonction
of Public Service publique du Canada

Canadian International  Agence canadienne de
Development Agency  developpement international

National School %:? SETYM International

of Government Www.Setym.com

University of the West Indies

HEART TRUST/NTA

SETYM International

Creative Production and Training Centre (CPTC)
Jamaica Information Service

Jamaica Civil Service Association

Graduate Institute of Leadership and
Professional Development (GILPD) Namibia

«  Cyprus Public Service Academy

«  Skillfocus Consultancy, Malaysia
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eadership is relatively easy to
explain but hard to practice.
Leadership is about behaviour
first and skills second. Good
leaders are followed chiefly
because people trust
and respect them, rather
than the skills they might possess.

Leadership is different from
management. Management relies
more on planning, organisational
and communication skills, while
leadership relies on management
skills too, but more so on qualities
such as integrity, honesty, humility,
courage, commitment, sincerity,
passion, confidence, positivity,
wisdom, determination, compassion,
sensitivity,and a degree of personal
charisma which is a force of character
or personal presence.

“Integrity, honesty, humility,
courage, commitment, sincerity,
passion,confidence, positivity,
wisdom, determination,
compassion, sensitivity, and
a degree of personal
charisma™

20
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The need for strong leadership across
all sectors has never been greater and
the nature of leadership in the 21st
century is changing. Organisations are
demanding leaders who can generate trust,
empower and inspire others, find
innovative answers to problems and
challenges, and produce results.

The development of leadership is of
vital importance to individuals and
organisations in every sector of society.
Increasingly throughout the public
sector, as with other sectors, individual
leaders and  organisations face
challenges that are international in
scope and dauntingly complex in scale.
Helping them lead effectively in this
climate requires a global mindset and a
commitment to innovation.

MIND is committed to providing the
knowledge base required for globally
competent and ethical public sector
leaders to advance the fulfillment of
their organisation’s mandate, in the
interest of creating and sustaining
national and regional growth and
development and world-class
exemplars of good governance in the
global community.

ive cache of
expertisein
gvelopmen t”

Over the past year, we invested heav-
ily of our time and resources in
further developing our expertise in
areas of Leadership Development and
other related areas.

An authentic understanding of
effective leadership is grounded

In rigorous research. So we
launched out on a path of dedicated
and extensive research and exploration
of the topic, that lead us to interface
with institutions and organisations
around the world, who have either a
vested interest in the development of
leadership skills; or who have gained
benchmark status in the practice and /or
development and delivery of

leadership development programmes.

Already we have amassed an
impressive cache of knowledge and
expertise in the area of leadership
development, and have infused what
we have learnt into the quality of our
professional behaviours and strategic
performance management.



“MIND strives to remain
true to our mission and

hlgh|y relevant to our and character, their professionalism, their

stakeholders, who look to

us for learning that has
al |asting impact on their Individuals and organisations, (around the

success”

we look forward, with your help, to

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 - 2009 | CULTIVATING A LEADERSHIP ETHOS

nurturing a community of

learners. we have therefore begunthe |
process of transferring our knowledge of
leadership, through a range of
programmes and consultations, that will
be of lasting value to our stakeholders and
leaders everywhere.

We organised and took part in numerous
events and projects that brought together
leaders who are passionate about their
craft. We engaged clients from the public
sector and other sectors, as well as major
entities that influence global affairs,
nonprofit and educational institutions,
media, and the general public.

We saw results in three distinct and critical - VW& count as one of our

spheres: the burgeoning understanding, critical goa|s at this time
appreciation, practice and development o |
leadership in the public and other sectors. to enable leaders and

organisations to become

MIND strives to remain true to it's mission :
and highly relevant to our stakeholders, more effective through

who look to us for learning that has a Detter leadership™
lasting impact on their success.

We count as one of our critical goals at this
time, to enable leaders and organisations |
to become more effective through better |
leadership, equipping them with skills and |
knowledge that can make their behaviour

performance, their service, their impact
and ultimately the world, a better place.
world), are demonstrating an increasing

hunger for leadership development, and

answering that urgent call.
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EADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT:

A Vehicle for Public Sector Modernisation
MARCH 18 & 19,2009 | HILTON, KINGSTON, JAMAICA

collaboration, knowledge, skill, expertise, time, effort, care and a
host of other resources that are readily available to us, if we
step forward and put on the mantle of leadership.

I Leadership demands a fusion of vision, insight, partnership and

The public sector demands all our attention and resources to
empower the management and leadership capabilities required to
deliver and sustain the highest quality of service to the citizenry,
and inspire and embolden a strong and enduring spirit of produc-
tivity, enterprise, harmony and a commitment to achieve excellence
in all areas.

MIND has set the mark and is off and running with the baton of
strategic management and leadership development, to pass on to
public service professionals and allied interest groups, to efficiently
and effectively serve and satisfy the best interest of the nation and
the region.

The MIND leadership Development Conference *09
Is a benchmark of excellence in vision, partner-
ship, knowledge, information, creativity and
the

dynamism. Beyond the Conference,
topics
covered
will
continue
to be
topical,
relevant
and worth
continued
discourse
and _
application. &
22 ——
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) Conference ‘09
EADERSHIP DEVELOPM ENT:

1 Vehicl .fJ}H\r.lUm’ourr.l
MARCH 18 & 19, ?U(

*{ia B *X Wednesday March 15th, 2009

HILTON, KINGSTON, JAMAICA

*{ia B ‘& Thursday March 19th, 2009
Plenary l Im.lr\

The Case and Context for Public Sector Leadership hip

[Presenter: Sir Keameih Hall, Former Gavernes Genersl] Coponlin n bdvencins vhe Pebls Socor u-\mtum- Agenda:
Presenter: l‘:ﬁnm[:aﬂr'lyhhnuh raduate Institute for
I.ndual' Professional Development (G lLI‘DI \uﬂm|

What Got You Here Won't Get You There:

Beyond Successful Managerial Performance Whar Al Leaders .\fm‘m.[nw

1o Effective Leaders [Presenter: De.obn Young. Dean Emarius, Unrverary of North Carclina s Greoashor|
[Pt Ma Shers Clk Manages, oo ol Sor,

s RalT ing the Heart of Good Leadership:

P, b Wb Pl * sanonal %

Engineering Performance: [ e s O ot e Mg
Why Leadership Development Maters in Difffculy Times

;n.-.{-n Robert Livy, CED), lasmaics Bosilors Ciroup Lruted | Ul1|otk 'I'oul I.eadershup Potential:
u = g Fi wals for Enhanced Leadership fmpact
Do the Right Thing: l”::‘ﬁ.:l;i‘ &‘-T',‘."‘“""““’ e et

Rules for Leading Ethic

Mem% mku;&mm rrrrr yat Make the Most of \foul Strengths

‘Norh Casolina m iroessbens] Without Overdoing it:

Concrete .!‘wwgin 1 Fumuw Leadership .!‘umm

Prescatee

1K Matinal Sehoed of Goveteéncet]

an Scott, Dseesor of Cultere &

Doees D v
LT Do i Moocy bk B ]

Talent Management:

Hi !.aoffu T-lr} fective Actimn
s f\‘ﬂ"? ‘g«m uman Resoerce Parmying 324 Divclopment
TR

Leadeuhlp Eﬂ'ech\reness
Intellectual Know-haw to Expanding

Jow, |esrming ared Dievelopmment Specialin sd | estendip
Coaies, U, Nasuona Schens f Grvesamces] bt

. Usiversity of Yuort Cané

[Prescrter: D Jobn Yousng.

Fit to Lead:
How Health and Fitmess Support the Leaders
[Presemter: D Eva Lew-Falles, Deecsor Health Promation

Process
Frosection Diviwca|

= [eadership Development: A vehicle for Public Sector
Modernisation.

®= The Role of Organisational Leader Capabilities in
advancing the public Sector Modernisation
Agenda

= The Case and Context for Public Sector Leadership
development

= What Got You Here Won't Get You There:Beyond
Successful Managerial Performance to Effective
Leadership

= Driving Performance: Why Leadership Development
Matters in Difficult Times

= Do the Right Things: Rules for Leading Ethically

= Building an Authentic Leadership Image

= Staying on Track: What All leaders Need to Know
= Strengthening the Heart of Good Leadership
= Unlock Your Leadership Potential: Feedback Tools

That Work/Leveraging 360-Degree Feedback for
Enhanced Leadership Impact

= Make the Most of Your Strengths Without
Overdoing It: Concrete Strategies to Fuel Your
Leadership Success

= Communicating Leadership Savvy:The Art and Skill
of Public Speaking

= Fjt to Lead: How Health and Fitness Support the
Leadership Process

= Great Leaders Build Great Teams



he success of the Conference

would not have been

possible without the partnership,
support and commitment to
engineer meaningful  change
throughout the public sector,
that impacts the quality of
public service delivered to the
citizenry and result in good
governance.

MIND applauds all who
made this Conference the
success that it was.

Delegates: Public, Private and
allied sectors from Jamaica and
the wider Caribbean Region
[sharing in a mutually enriching
experience with a multiplicity of
rewarding outcomes.]

Partners: Cabinet Office, Ministry
of Finance, Office of Services
Commission, Jamaica  Civil
Service Association, Jamaica
Information Service, for your
invaluable partnership, collaboration
and commitment to the mission
of professionalising the public
sector and for displaying
exemplary dynamism, team-
work, tenacity and professionalism
in all areas of the Conference
planning and execution; Centre
for Creative Leadership, Canada,
National School of Government
— UK, [contributing your organisa-
tions’ training resources ]; Creative
Production and Training Centre,

[For the supply of technology
equipment and technical professional
support]; Press Box Printers

[preferential fees on all printing
services for the Conference]

ll EADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT:
A Vehicle for Public Sector Modernisation
MARCH 18 & 19,2009 | HILTON, KINGSTON, JAMAICA
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Excerpt of the Prime Minister’s Message

shared with Delegates at the
MIND Leadership Conference ‘09

THE HONOURABLE
PRIME MINISTER

The Management Institute
for National Development
(MIND), under the theme,
“Leadership Development: A
Vehicle for Public Sector
Modernisation” is  both
timely and appropriate; and

resources of your mind
cnice, insight and
d qualities.
abile 10 the process

m&ﬁ@g}‘:‘;:;;:‘;:f‘ possibly holds even greater

\ R e ) significance than those held

in the past, given the current

Presenters: Senator Dwight . global climate; where many
Bruce Golding

countries, companies, organi-
sations and individuals are reeling from the impact
of the serious financial challenges that prevail. These
problems that beset both the international and local
landscapes, have imposed stringent imperatives on
entities, to engage in fundamental and transforma-
tional initiatives, if they want to overcome the
obstacles and secure their survival.

Nelson, Sir Kenneth Hall, Prof. Earle
Taylor, Dr. John Young, Shera Clark,
Fiona Manklow, Robert Levy,
Angela Patterson, Dr. Calton Davis,
Karelle Jones, Duncan
Scott, Dr. Patricia Eves-Mckenzie,
Dr. Lewis-Fuller, Dr. Walter Phillips,
Colin Barnett, Wayne Jones, Prof.
Trevor Munroe, [For the magnani-
mous contribution of your invaluable
time, knowledge and expertise in
leadership development]

NAanna
uiinia

This applies even more so to our public sector work-
ers, who are the main purveyors of Government'’s
policies and programmes; and the transformation
which is required, must be steered by and rest
primarily in the ‘hands’ of the leadership of the public
sector. This is certainly a mammoth task with which
public sector leaders have been entrusted; and how
best this is carried out, is dependent on the extent of
their readiness; as their efficacy or lack thereof, will
determine to a large extent, the success or failure of
the Government. This again brings to the fore, the
importance of a Conference such as this; where the
main objective is to strengthen, enhance and build
the leadership capacities and capabilities of our
public sector managers.

Moderators: Hillary Alexander,
Myrtle Weir, Ann-Marie Rhoden,
Michelle Muir, Elizabeth
Emmanuel, Fay Sukhu, Miranda
Sutherland, Takeyce Palmer [For
volunteer support and expert guidance
of the sessions]

Media: For their invaluable partner-
ship, collaboration and commitment to
the mission of educating and informing the
public

MIND Team: For displaying exemplary
dynamism, teamwork, tenacity and
professionalism in all areas of the

Conference planning and execution

This Conference theme supports theefforts of the
Government’s  Public Sector Modernisation
Programme, which is seeking to apply a strategic
approach to enhancing the performance of civil
servants; and transforming the public sector into
one “which puts the public’s interest first, and in
which valued and respected professionals deliver
high quality services efficiently and effectively.” |
have every confidence that this forum will facilitate
the exchange of ideas and experiences amongst
practitioners and experts, that will augur well for the
future development of the public sector.



PARTNERSHIP
and
COLLABORATION




The Ministry of Finance
and the Public Service
Public Service Establishment Division
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the value of
PARTNERSHIP & COLLABORATION

hrough the MIND flows the spirit
of adventure, exploration,
discovery, entrepreneurship and a

strong sense of connectedness
with like minds.

We celebrate the fact that the world
today is almost fully connected and
that our individual actions as
countries, organisations, and people
can influence the lives of others
elsewhere on the globe. Economic
jolts around the world, such as the
financial turmoil being experienced
today, remind us that no single country
can succeed alone. That might also
imply that no country flounders on
its own.

In spite of the challenges, however,
we celebrate the truism, that, with

vision, unity of purpose and through
perseverance, it is possible to achieve
great accomplishments, and forge a
strong, productive and successful
future.

We celebrate looking forward to the
possibility of realising our vast potential
as a nation and as a region. We
celebrate the possibilities for success,
knowing that the way forward must be
imbued with solidarity, inclusiveness,
purpose and meaningful cooperation.
That we can, as a national, regional and
global community, move forward in
partnership and collaboration, recognising

and responding cohesively and
coherently, to the difficult challenges
that confront our respective

organisations, sectors and nations,
large and small.

“We celebrate looking
forward to the possibility
of realising our vast potential
as a nation and as a
region.

We celebrate the possibilities
for success, knowing that
the way forward must be
imbued with  solidarity,
inclusiveness, purpose and
meaningful cooperatjgn” ¢




“...what is at
stake, Is the
sum total of
the impact of all
our contribution,
all our expertise
and all our
resources to
society and the

connection
between the
fulfillment of
all of our vision
and mission”

the value of
PARTNERSHIP & COLLABORATION

As we unite in sharing the
dynamic exchange of
knowledge, experiences
and ideas, we celebrate
the fact that the vast and
inextricable web of link-
ages that connects all our

WOI'ldS, all our enterprise, all our
hopes and vision for the future, is
strong only with the knowledge and
appreciation, that in the end, what is
at stake, is the sum total of the impact
of all our contribution, all our expertise
and all our resources to society and the
connection between the fulfillment of
all of our vision and mission.

Beyond the development and delivery
of management and leadership
development programmes, professional
services and outreach, MIND explores
and continues to drive and energise
all our partnerships.

The quality of the partnerships we
forge, will determine the outcome of
our desire to protect and promote the
highest standards of professionalism
in the public service; and our commit-
ment to ensuring that our people are .
provided with the most efficient and =
effective quality of public service to =~
enable them to share equitably in =~
economic and social benefits. ?
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WD Social Outreach

Hope Estate Educational Partners (HEEP)

s

s a leading corporate citizen in the commu-
A nity in which MIND’s Kingston Campus is
located, MIND joined forces with other
corporate bodies located in the commu-
nity, to assist with the development of the
community within which we operate, with
special focus on the improvement and maintenance
of the physical environment and the social
needs of the people of the community, in
particular the children.

Subsequently, MIND is a proud partner of the
Hope Estate Educational Partners ( HEEP ).
HEEP is a community-based organisation,
located within the Hope Estate/ Papine area.
The organisation seeks to unite the
community’s major stakeholders - i.e. companies,
schools, churches, residents - who have a
vested interest in the community's social,
economic and ecological development and

sustainability.

“MIND is a proud partner of
the Hope Estate Educational
Partners ( HEEP ). HEEP is a
community-based organisation,
located within the Hope
Estate/ Papine area”

28 /8D

Some of the collaborating
Agencies/ partners within HEEP
are:

+ The Management Institute
for National Development
(MIND)

+ Jamaica Association for the
Deaf Schools

+ University of Technology
(UTECH)

+ Papine High School

+ McCam Child Development

+ Carberry Court Special
School

+ National Children’s Home

+ Hope Gardens

Since its inception in 2003, the
HEEP Organising Committee,
through a project funded by the
Environmental Foundation of
Jamaica has created a park,
informally known as “Hope
Green” This park, consisting of a
green area and also an asphalted
court, was created for the
recreational enjoyment of
community members.

- )

Special events have been
planned and executed, aimed at
promoting the use of the park
and as an avenue through which
to raise funds to increase the
ability of HEEP to become more
responsive to the social needs of
the community. One of the more
outstanding events was MIND’s
lead partnership role in the coor-
dination of HEEP’s Storytelling
and Picnicking, at the Hope
Green.

“One of the more
outstanding events was
MIND’s lead
partnership role in
the coordination of
HEEP’s Storytelling
and Picnicking, at
the Hope Green™
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Social Outreach

he dynamic 2 G oo
organisations neither D Jﬁ’“ ;i‘ﬂ‘,?‘ “‘
static, nor sterile. It is /A° mﬁ‘w“w L ence 43¢

16th

vibrant, multifaceted and Pglﬁgﬂgm
people-centred. It embraces
opportunities for service
beyond narrow self-interests
and celebrates the positive
change-enhancing results. Wil

ekt & o vcpet time: 6:00 pm. ke

MIND is ever conscious of our Corporate i
Social Responsibility and our commitment to
serve and satisfy the best interests of all our
stakeholders. While our core business brings
us primarily in direct contact with our public
sector and other allied stakeholder groups,
MIND continually seeks out and utiliszes
opportunities to interface directly with the
citizens, whose interests we ultimately serve.

ITLLA (T
de 0 ¥ U peraliVt

In Difficudr Times and for Al Times ...
Building emd
Sustaining @ Competitive
Performance Colture

venue: MIND Campus

235A 01d Hope Road, Kingston & u
ﬁ date: Thursda g’

March 26, 2

MIND’s Social Outreach programmes are
dynamic and diverse. From Public Lectures,
Forums, Awards, Endorsements, Sponsorship,
Partnership and Collaboration of subject
matter aligned with our interest in promoting
Excellence in all areas, throughout the Jamaican
Society - to playing a lead role in the support
of community development — MIND opens up
its resources to the benefit of the greater
good.




MANAGING
PERFORMANCE
EXCELLENCE

AGENCY PERFORMANCE vs TARGETS
[April 2008- March 2009]




ol

ith a strong focus on

innovation and impact, MIND

significantly strengthened its

portfolio of offerings during

the 2008 - 2009 fiscal year. Our efforts

yielded increase in revenues, and

substantial increase in our status

among stakeholders in the national,
regional and international market.

In service to our stakeholders and our
mission, MIND’s work was guided by an
ambitious list of key strategic objec-
tives — and we experienced excellent
results across the board.

We increased our accessibility to clients
by strengthening our focus, promotion
and administrative attention on our
classroom and distance learning
modality.

We furthered our expertise in leadership
and professional development, focused
on helping clients navigate the
complex leadership and professional
challenges, and lead and manage
effectively, amid the complexities and
the unpredictables.

We continued to integrate new
technology into our array of programs,
products and services, and special
emphasis was placed on developing
plans aimed at enhancing our Web site
at www.mind.edu.jm.

Much of MIND’s success depends on
strategic partnerships and collaborations
and we have been fortunate to have
received considerable support from
national, regional and international

stakeholders. Even as we have received
assistance, we continue to deepen our
philanthropic support to the development
of community and people, via leadership
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involvement with several social initiatives.

For the Fiscal Year, April 2008- March 2009,
the Management Institute for National
Development (MIND) pursued ten (10)

Agency specific Strategic Objectives:

1.

10.

Increase learner participation,
engagement and achievement

Expand options and access to training
and development

Strengthen the quality of service
delivery

Develop, review and upgrade learning
products and services in response to
government and business priorities
and needs

Maintain sound financial management

Entrench a system of documenting
and referencing Agency policies
and operational procedures

Establish and sustain an
environmental management
programme towards reducing
operational costs and the
Agency’s negative impact on
the natural environment
Expand strategies to upgrade
public sector employees

Provide innovative and
responsive learning
environments

Expand strategies to create
greater awareness of MIND and
its services to the various publics

These Strategic Objectives underpinned
MIND’s overarching goal to be more
strategic, relevant and responsive to
the training and development needs
and priorities of Government, the
wider public sector and allied stakeholders
in Jamaica, with extensions in the
Caribbean.

The collective performance of the
Agency’s Departments and

Divisions, resulted in 27 of 31
targets achieved, or 87%
success rating for the Agency.

“With a strong focus on
innovation and impact,
MIND significantly
strengthened its portfolio of
offerings during the
2008 = 2009 fiscal
year. Our efforts yielded
Increase in revenues,
and substantial increase
in our status among
stakeholders in the
national, regional and
international market™

AN 31
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Strategic Objectives

Targets

Performance Achieved

Increase learner 1. Achieve 90% rating with clients' satisfaction 99% - target exceeded
participation, engagement with the performance of staff trained at MIND
and achievement
2. Achieve 90% rating with participants 87% - target not achieved
successfully completing course/programmes
3. 75% pass rate achieved on examinable courses/ 81% - target exceeded
programmes
4. Achieve 90% rating with participants' 97% - target exceeded
satisfaction with Learning facilitation
5% Achieve 90% rating with participants' 91% - target exceeded
satisfaction with course coordination and
administration
6. Achieve 95% participant satisfaction 96% - target exceeded
with achievement of stated learning
outcomes
7. 4% increase in number of repeat o~ , -
- n 5% - target exceeded
participants
8. 4% increase in revenue attributed to 8% - target exceeded
repeat participants
Expand options and access | 9. 197 courses delivered 221 courses delivered-
to training and development target exceeded
10. 16,311 course hours (programmed and 17,159 course hours
customised) (programmed and
customised) - target achieved
11. 3,628 participants 5053 participants
- target exceeded
12. Six Special Learning Events Eight (8) Special Learning
Events - target exceeded
13. 5% increase in MIND Online registration | 150% - target exceeded
Strengthen the quality of 14. Achieve 85% client satisfaction with service 85% - target achieved
service delivery delivery
15. Achieve 75% staff job satisfaction 71% - target not achieved
16. Achieve 85% participant satisfaction with 94% - target exceeded

service delivery

Develop, review and
upgrade learning products
and services in response to
government and business
priorities and needs

Z,iNl)

17. Achieve 85% client satisfaction with the

18

extent to which training has met their
organisation's needs

. 100% of new and upgraded products and
services each having explicit statement
(rationale) of alignment with government
priorities and needs

97% - target exceeded

58% - target not achieved
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Targets

Performance Achieved

Maintain sound financial

Financial targets met:

management
19. Income — 100% Exceeded target by 13%
20. Expenditure — 100% Reduced costs by 13%
of targeted figure
(target exceeded)
Entrench a system of 21. Achieve 60% decrease in the number of non 75% - target exceeded

documenting and
referencing Agency policies
and operational procedures

conformances to policies and procedure

Establish and sustain an
environmental
management programme
towards:

e reducing operational

~rncte
LvuUoLw

e reducing the Agency's
negative impact on the
natural environment

22.

23.

24,

100% of Environmental Management System
policy/procedure developed

100% of Environmental Management
System policy/procedure promulgated

100% completion of Research on the Agency's
impact on the natural environment

100% - target achieved

0% - target not achieved

100% completed - target
achieved

Expand strategies to
upgrade public sector
employees

25.

5% increase in revenue earned from customised
learning products

9% - target exceeded

Provide innovative and
responsive learning
environments

26.

27.

28.

Achieve 85% client/participant satisfaction with
facilities

Achieve 85% staff satisfaction with
facilities

Achieve 85% client/participant satisfaction with
IT services

94% - target exceeded

86% - target exceeded

100% - target exceeded

Expand strategies to create
greater awareness of
MIND and its services to
the various publics.

29.

30.

31.

5% increase in revenue over prior year

5% increase in demand for existing products

5% increase in requests for
development of new products

16% - target exceeded
26% - target exceeded

8.5% - target exceeded
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Customer
Service

For the year April 2008- March 2009, a total of
221 courses were delivered. The target was
set for evaluating 75% of courses annually. The
year under review revealed that this target was
surpassed by 20% - i.e. 210 of 221 courses
or 95% evaluated.

The courses evaluated included scheduled and
customised courses, delivered at MIND Kingston
and Mandeville Campuses, as well as at other
locations in Jamaica and in the Caribbean.
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C u S t O I I I e r The following Tables (1-2) provide a summary of data collected on a monthly basis,

(throughout the year). Actual data is provided for the month of March and the final

Service

percentages for the respective indicator as at the end of the fiscal year.

Table 1
Management Level and Sector Description of Participants Evaluated
Levels Sector
Senior Middle Supervisory Management Public Private
Management Management (%) Aspirants (%) (%)
(%) (%) (%)
4 14 42 40 95 5
Table 2
Responses of Participants Evaluated
Statements Responses Targets | Actuals | Year to
! date
(%) (%) (%)
Strongly | Agree | Disagree| Strongly
Agree (%) (%) Disagree
(%) (%)
. The delivery and assessment 42 55 3 - 90 97 97
methodologies employed during the
course effectively facilitated my
learning (e.g. logically structured,
effective use of audio visual aids,
interactive, stimulating, practical
application)
Participant materials (handouts, etc) 47 46 7 - - 93 95
were useful during the sessions.
. The session content was logically 47 43 6 4 - 90 93
organised.
My knowledge and /or skills 53 44 3 - - 97 98
increased asa result of this course.
. Stated learning outcomes of the 43 51 5 1 95 94 %6
course have been achieved.
My training course was well 38 47 10 5 85 85
coordinated and administered. 91
. The training room arrangement 35 53 8 - 85 92
was satisfactory 94
. Overall, | was satisfied with the 45 50 5 - 90 95
presenter (s). 97
. Overall, | was satisfied with this 38 56 6 - 85 94 926
course.
10. The training directory accurately 28 64 7 1 - 92 94
described the actual presentation of
this course.
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C U S t O | | | e r Tables (1-2) provide a summary of data collected on a monthly basis, (throughout the year). Actual data is
provided for the month of March and the final percentages for the respective indicator as at the end of the

S e rVi Ce fiscal year.

Table 2

Responses of Participants Evaluated (contd.)

Statements Responses Targets | Actuals | Year to
! date
(%) (%) (%)
Strongly | Agree | Disagree| Strongly
Agree (%) (%) Disagree
(%) (%)
11. Overall, | was satisfied with the 20 72 8 - 85 92 95
general facilities.
12. Overall, | was satisfied with the 10 62 28 - - 72 76
canteen services.
13. Overall | was satisfied with the 16 66 15 3 85 82 88
Library Services.
14. 1 was satisfied with the Operation’s
Unit:
e Responsiveness 19 72 8 1 - 91 94
o Effectiveness 19 74 6 1 - 93 95
o Staff Attitude 31 63 5 1 - 94 96
15. | was satisfied with the Account’s
Unit:
e Responsiveness 18 75 5 2 93
o Effectiveness 16 77 5 2 - 93 94
o  Staff Attitude 27 71 1 1 - 98 97
16. | was satisfied with the Customer
Service Division’s:
- 38 59 3 - 90 91 94
o RESpOHSIVEHESS
« Effectiveness 35 62 3 - 90 91
o Staff Attitude 42 Bo 3 - 90 94 96
17. Overall | was satisfied with the 13 50 34 2 _ 63 30
examination coordination.
18. Overall I was satisfied with the 33 60 7 - - 93 97
examination invigilation.
1 The percentages in the column are derived by adding the percentages in the strongly agree and agree columns.
NB: Previous target year-to-date up to October, 2008 - 95%. Target has been changed to reflect responsive-
ness, effectiveness and staff attitude - effective November 1, 2008.
Customer Demographic Data
In order to strategically plan, implement repeat customers, number of  Variable Type Number Percentage
and analyse data to inform sound customers served by sector and
decision making in all areas of operation, customer gender. The results of Male 1117 21%
MIND has b.egun coIIectlng Custpmer one of the Customer Dem(?graphic Female 4215 79 %
Demographic  Data. The variables Tables, featuring Gender variable, is ol # of participants 5332 100%

focused on for the fiscal year were: as follows:
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= -

Summary Performance
M niet Integrate WEB 2.0 applicati MINDNet - th
Review Of Divisions Ineqrate WES 2.0 applications on MINDNet - the
icati di th | f shared
and Depa rtments information among pertinent target groups

- Implement wireless internet access from strategic

on-campus locations
- Implementation of - MIND's on-line library
‘ INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY database; upgrade of MIND website,
www.mind.edujm - though work to complete
For the fiscal year April 2008 - March 2009, and in accor- the projects is on-going

dance with MIND’s 2008-2011 Corporate Plan, the IT
Division focused on two Strategic Objectives: ‘ BUSINESS MANAGEMENT
1. Strengthen the quality of service delivery

2. Provide innovative and responsive learning
environment

Highlights of the Division’s Performance

Outcomes include:

- Upgrade of MIND’s Participant Management
System- PAMAM (Participant Administration
@ MIND)

- Production and dissemination of Monthly Training
and Management Reports

The Business Management Department (BMD)
consists of three Divisions - Accounts, Customer Service
and Operations.

For the fiscal year April 2008 - March 2009, and in
accordance with MIND’s 2008-2011 Corporate Plan,
the Business Management Department focused on
three Strategic Objectives aimed at:

1. Improving operational efficiency

i Zrovicfe ZCC?;S t(t) P- MINE Part'/ﬁ;ptan.t? fozj 2. Building environmental awareness
ownload ot Fast Fapers, -.ouIs€ Viateriai an 3. Improving the aesthetic and functional value of
Transcripts; Learning Facilitators to upload MIND’ facilities.

learning Material, Faculty utilization,
Actual vs. Budgeted figures, Training hours
and Customer Demographics
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Summary Performance
Review Of Divisions
and Departments

I Business Management cont’'d

Highlights of the Division’s Performance

Outcomes include:

- Two new Environmental Management
Projects added to the suite of MIND's
Environmental Stewardship programmes:
MIND Rainwater Recycling and MIND
Composting Plant Projects

- Improve developments to previously
implemented projects to strengthen capacity
and sustainability.

- Institutionalised the MIND Environmental
Impact Report to evaluate the extent to
which MIND’s environmental initiatives
have benefited the Agency and community
and impact the natural environment.

- Drafted MIND’s Environmental,
Procurement and Asset Disposal Policies
to guide and monitor MIND’s operating
standards (as per international ISO standards)

- Acquired and implemented use of AccPac
Accounting software in the Accounts
Division to enable greater management
efficiency and effectiveness of the Accounts
Receivables. Plans are underway to
introduce two other new applications
for the same purpose for Accounts Payables
and Fixed Assets.

- Improved via Facilities Management, the
aesthetic appeal and functionality of the
office spaces and common areas

I INTERNAL AUDIT

MIND's Internal Audit function responds to the
task of developing,implementing and continu-
ously reviewing policies and procedures to
ensure transparency and compliance with
Government Regulations, Systems and Proce-
dures, and standards in keeping with accepted
organisational and best practices world wide.

For the fiscal year April 2008 - March 2009, and
in accordance with MIND’s 2008-2011
Corporate Plan, Internal Audit focused on two
Strategic Objectives:

1. Entrench a system of documenting and
referencing Agency policies and operational
procedure

2. Establish and sustain an environmental
management programme towards reducing
operational costs and the Agency’s
impact on the natural environment
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Highlights of Performance Outcomes include:

- Achieved 100% of its target for absence of audit exceptions in
the Auditor General’s final report

- Developed an Audit Plan for which 81% of the plan was
implemented and 75% of the elements put forward reviewed.
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® Creati fan Ethical Infrastruct ]
Summary Performance o e rerre
T el e Effective Corporate Governance

RGVIew Of DMSIO"S e Management Techniques for New Managers

- Coordinated the Agency’s Annual Leader
and Departments ship Conference: Leadership Development:

* AVehicle for Public Sector Modernisation’,

March 2009

LEARNING FACILITATION - Achieved Accreditation status for the Associate
AND MANAGEMENT of Science Degree in Human Resource
Management
The Learning Facilitation and Management
OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR
OF LEARNING

(LFM) Department consists of four Divisions
and four Units:
- Division of Leadership and Professional

Development (DLPD) o ) ) )

- Division of Finance and Organisational The Division, Office of the Director of Learning,
Administration (DFOA) (which includes comprises three (3) Units — Research, Library and
The Administrative Professionals’Training Records Management(RLR); Partnerships, and
Centre (APTC) MIND Online

- The Office of the Director of Learning o )
which further consists of three units: Highlights of Performance Outcomes include:
(Research, Library and Records (RLR), * Partnerships )

Partnerships and MIND Online) - Maintained the longstanding
- MIND Mandeville Learning Centre (MMLC) Partnership between the Agency and

the University of the West Indies

- Pursuing three(3) new Partnership
and Articulation Agreements with
the University College of the
Caribbean (UCC), Northern Caribbean
University (NCU) and the Caribbean
Polytechnic Institute (CPI)

- Developed proposals for donor agencies
and public sector organisations, for the
development and/or delivery of :
Organisational Development and

LEADERSHIP AND Transformation; Environmental Stewardship;
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT Corporate Governance; Institutional
Capacity Strengthening for Community

Highlights of Performance Outcomes include: Development.

- 24 of the 34 targets achieved; 18 exceeded - Exceeded target by 35% for managing
targets efficiently and effectively, storage of

- Target for Customized Courses exceeded pertinent course and programme-related
by 135%. information on the Institute’s main

- Development of a Concept Document for repository — MINDnet
the introduction of an Orientation - Reduced expenditure by 31%

Programme (which provides a comprehensive
understanding of the framework underpinning
the functions, policies, procedures and
systems governing general operations
within the public service)

- Drafted two policies to strengthen
procedures and improve standards of
quality, control and assurance

- Reviewed and upgraded the following

programmes /courses

General Management Programme

Certificate in Supervisory Management

Social Research Methods

PMAS 1&2

Corporate and Strategic Planning

Associate of Science Degree in HRM

/D




Summary Performance
Review Of Divisions
and Departments

‘ Research, Library
and Records Unit

- Conducted Tracer Study for the 2007 MIND
Graduates; Client Satisfaction Surveys;
Learning Facilitators’Evaluations; Course
Evaluations

- Reviewed and revised select policies and
procedures to support the thrust towards
achieving improved quality and standards
of operations

‘ MIND Mandeville
Learning Centre

- Achieved 17 of 22 targets (77%))

- Achieved over 90% rating for Learmng
Facilitation and Course Coordination

- Successful relocation of MIND Mandeville
Learning Centre from Mandeville Plaza to
Perth Road
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Division of Finance and

Organisational Administration

Succeeded with meeting all of 32
performance targets; 20 exceeded.
Exceeded revenue targets for programmed
(34%) and customized courses (176%)
Collaborated with relevant Units at the
Ministry of Finance and the Public Service to
design training modules in Audit Techniques
Developed and established course for
Procurement Policies and Procedures.
Developed and established three new
programmes / courses: Introductory Mathematics;
Microsoft Project Management; Training for
Procurement Officers

Produced Research Paper, using educational
marketing and strategic management to
enhance the competitiveness of tertiary
institutions: The Case Of MIND

MIND Mandeville Learning Centre
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Summary Performance
Review Of Divisions
and Departments

I MIND Online

POWERING AHEAD

E-MIND
CONNECTION

Beyond The Classroom . . . Distance Learning

E-Powering Jamaica 2012 has been adopted as
the foundation for the ICT Sector Plan within the
long-term development plan for Jamaica’s Vision
2030. One of the primary objectives is to ensure
an educated and knowledge based society.
Specific focus areas include:

® Fullintegration of ICT into the teaching and
learning processes at all levels

e Arevised curriculum to ensure that ICT is
integrated in the teaching and learning
processes

® The development of digital educational
content and the utilization of electronic media
to offer courses including on-line courses

MIND underpinned its commitment to
strengthen the Institute’s capacity and capability in
this area by investing in the recruitment of a
Manager for Distance Learning, with special
focus on:
- Coordinating the Unit’s programmes
and courses
Monitoring programme facilitation
and participants’ progress
Providing effective and efficient
leadership and administrative support
Evaluating the Course Management
System and Programme Delivery
- Researching, monitoring, informing
and leading the review and analysis of
the technology landscape to guide
and support decision-making, customer
satisfaction and training impact

2 JND

Associate of Science Degree Management
Studies programme:

60% increase in enrollment

Ranked as the second (2nd) highest
enrollment among MIND's Associates
Degree programmes (Accounting
programme ranked first 1st; Human
Resource Management programme ranked
third 3rd).

Associate Degree Programme restructured
to incorporate a blended delivery modality
to enhance student constructivist learning
and retention.

Introduced an E-readiness Evaluation and
orientation session for successful Applicants
Memberships with the Jamaica Association
for Distance and Open Learning (JADOL)
and the Caribbean Association for Distance
and Open Learning (CARADOL)

New initiatives for programme

expansion in 2009-10

Introduced Skype software, which facilitates
synchronous (real-time) communication
via the internet with participants.
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HELP FILE

F_AVAIl ARIIITY

o 18 st 0

MIND Directory of Scheduled
Programmes and Courses

To optimise resources, expand MIND’s
reach, accessibility and facilitate ease-of-
use to all target groups (organisations
and individuals), the MIND Training
Directory was produced and distributed
in both Print and Electronic Format.

Print: Attractive letter-size, Paperback i "",”
Directory Electronicc CD and via % Uman Kesource
o helne

www.mind.edu.jm

The creative development and production .

of both print and electronic versions of .

the Directory, was managed and MIND webSIte

produced entirely by MIND’s in-house ~MIND’s website, www.mind.edu.jm, showcases the Agency, its products

team of professionals, utilising MIND’s ~and services on the world wide web. Additionally, it facilitates access to

technical expertise and technology several of MIND’s web-based resources, including the course manage-

resources (with the exception of printing, ment system, participant administration system and email. Initiatives

which was outsourced) have commenced to repurpose and improve the functionality, layout
and content of the MIND website. This will, in turn, address some of the
communication, business development and branding needs of MIND.

MIND Online

This training delivery modality was
developed against the background
of the modernisation goals of the
public sector, with particular refer-
ence to the Government of Jamaica’s
technology skill development and
utilisation emphasis, to enable
increased range and higher standards
of professional competencies and
efficiencies. MIND Online servesasa
portal to MIND's web-based training
access to course: and pr

Lo 4 o B

R o TR v o
Iﬂ.—z .mind.eduim
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Summary Performance
* * * *
Review Of Divisions
of Learning Products (Print and Electronic Format);
and Depa rtments LeadershipgDevelopment Conference Magazine;
MIND Journal; Establishing a Better Frame of MIND;
. Special information inserts for Course Manuals
. Marketing - Strengthened direct contact with partners and
clients

- Established effective partnership and collaborative

PROMOTl NG links with critical stakeholders resulting in increased
EXCELLENCE efficiencies and greater cost reduction
- Increased MIND’s visibility in the media and among key

STRENGTHENING COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE target groups

- Strengthened brand development, promotion and
Achieved success with 25 targets; exceeded 14 recognition for MIND’s corporate and
Produce and disseminated a Business Development product/corporate products and services
Plan: Establishing a Better Frame of MIND. - Strengthened the use of technology in marketing and
Precursor to the Strategic Plan (which established communication . ’ -
the foundation for the development of the Strategic - Coordinated the establishment of MIND’s repositioning
Plan, currently strategy within the MIND community and throughout
underway) - the Jamaican and
Coordinated four (4) Caribbean Market

- Expanded MIND’s

Friday Policy Forums
reach and strength-

and one (1) Annual

Public Lecture as ened impact of the
follows: Agency among critical

stakeholder groups in
Stemming theTide the local regional and
of Violence Against international market

- Provided strong
and sustained strategic
support to the office of
the CEOQ, MIND
Divisions and some
stakeholder organisations,

Women: a National
Imperative - (Fay
Webster- Executive
Director, Bureau of
Women'’s Affairs)

Managing the in the areas of
Public Sector in communication  and
Times of Uncertainty business development
(Professor Earle Taylor, - Established a MIND
President, Graduate Creative Development
institute of Leadership and Production Unit
and Professional

Development,

Namibia)

The value of Partnership and Collaboration
within the Public Services: Creating Cost & Service
Efficiencies - (Glynis Salmon, Director,

Business Development & Communication, MIND)

In Difficult Times and For All Times: Building

and Sustaining a Competitive Performance Culture
(Professor Earle Taylor, President, Graduate institute
of Leadership and Professional Development,
Namibia)

Coordinated planning and promotion of MIND
Conferences, Workshops and Seminars

Produced a range of Publications e.g. MIND Directory
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Summary Performance

Review Of Divisions

and Departments

.
Management

CAPACITY BUILDING

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 - 2009 | MANAGING PERFORMANCE EXCELLENCE

INSTITUTIONAL STRENGTHENING

- Coordinated Training and Development; Job
Analysis; Staff Satisfaction Survey

- Draft proposals for the establishment of a

comprehensive and practical Agency Safety and
Emergency Plan

- Coordinated MIND’s Staff Annual
Salute to Quality Awards and '
Dinner

The Table below shows the targeted training hours for each
category of employee and the Division’s actual corresponding
performance measured in course hours and percentage.

Coordinated local, regional and international
training activities to facilitate the continuous
development of the MIND team in the following
areas:

> Business in a Global Environment

> Project And Performance Management

> Quality Assurance

» Information Communications and Technology

> Curriculum Development and Pedagogical
Facilitation Practices

> Budget Management
> Customer Service Excellence
> Monitoring And Evaluation

> Transformational Leadership
And Strategic Management

> Retirement Planning
> Occupational Health And Safety

Category Annual Target | Actual Performance | Performance
(Hours) (Hours) measured in % age
Managers/Supervisors | 400 953 Exceeded by 238%
Learning Facilitators 500 515 Exceeded by 103%
Administrative/Clerical | 300 1061 Exceeded by 354%
Ancillary Support 150 285 Exceeded by 190%
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AUDITOR GENERAL’'S DEPARTMENT
40 KNUTSFORD BOULEVARD

P.0. BOX 455

KINGSTON 5

JAMAICA

Email: audgen@auditorgeneral.gov.jm

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Chief Executive Officer
Management Institute for National Development

Report on the Financial Statements

| have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of the Management Institute for
National Development, set out on pages 1 to 12, which comprise the Statement of
Financial Position as at March 31, 2009, Statement of Financial Performance, Statement
of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial
Statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards. This
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining intemal controls
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial Statements based on my
audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with the auditing standards issued by the
International Organization of Supreme Audit Institutions (INTOSAI). Those standards
require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk

a7 SN



ANNUAL REPORT 2008 - 2009 | FINANGIAL

Managing Performance Excellence

Financial Report

2008 - 2009

assessments, the audilor considers internal control relevant 1o the entity’s preparaticn
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As at March 31, 2009 1| could not place any reliance on the accounts receivables
which were valued at $66,453,047. Included in the accounts receivable are credit
balances totalling $18,399,334 that management has not been able to fully investigate
and resolve. The Management Institute for National Development has indicated that
these balances represent monies received from participants that have not been
applied to the relevant invoices as the required documentation was not presented or is
not available. The audit was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
determine the possible effects of these credit balances on the financial statements
which could be material.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the circumstance described in the basis for qualified opinion
paragraph, the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Management Institute for National Development as at March 31, 2009, and of its
financial performance, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Public Sector Accounting Standards.

Report on Additional Requirements of the Executive Agencies’ Act

| have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit. In my opinion,
proper accounting records have been maintained and the Financial Statements are in
agreement therewith and give the information required in the manner so required.

AuditorGenera|

ap\ela

Date

5

4

-
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Statement of Financial Position

Year ended March 31, 2009

Note 2009 2008
$ $

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 22,229,445 13,927,710

22,229,445 13,927,710
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 5 66,436,464 35,616,215
Prepayments 54,248 267,807
Cash and cash equivalents 6 52,946,997 27,365,172

119,437,709 63,249,194

Current liabilities
Payables and accruals 7 15,914,570 5,571,696
Employee benefits 8 9,231,536 6,201,515
GOJ 50% Contribution 9 52,071,259 27,798,109
Unearned Revenue 22,528,634 19,445,780

99,745,999 59,017,100
Net current assets 19,691,711 4,232,094
Total assets 41,921,155 18,1592804
Equity
Capital (GOJ Investment) 11 15,833,262 15,833,262
General reserve 23,464,255 (808,895)
Donated Assets Reserve 12 2,623,638 3,135,437
Total equity and reserve 41,921,155 18,159,804

Approved for issug on behalf of the Management Institute for National Development on
and signed on its behalf by:

...............

Ruby Brown, Ph.D.
Chief Executive Officer Senior Manager, Corporate Services

The accompanying notes on pages 5 — 12 form an integral part of the financial statements
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Year ended March 31, 2009

Note 2009 2008

$ $

INCOME
Training Course Fees 48,197,496 21,570,600
Miscellaneous Revenue 5,763,369 760,596
Training Support - Facilities Rental 847,350 612,070
Divisional Revenue 81,009,413 48,366,903
Total income 135,817,628 71,310,169
EXPENDITURE
Staff costs 13 118,439,990 93,316,146
Goods and services 14 69,641,636 37,365,724
Premises related services 15 19,639,217 14,417,822
Depreciation 3,081,985 1,975,613
Bad Debts Provision 9,241,365 2,031,452
Total operating expenses 220,044,193 149,106,757
Operating deficit (84,226,565) (77,796,588)
Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) 863,052 8,481
Interest income 31,014 4,446
Donated asset amortization 511,799 511,799
Net deficit before GOJ Financing (82,820,700) (77,271,862)
GOJ financing from Consolidated Fund 131,367,000 88,257,000
Net (deficit)/surplus after GOJ financing 48,546,300 10,985,138
50% Net surplus to Consolidated Fund 9 (24,273,150) (5,492,569)
Net (deficit)/surplus 24,273,150 5,492,569

The accompanying notes on pages 5 — 12 form an integral part of the financial statements
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Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended March 31, 2009
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Financial Report

Capital Donated
(GOI Assets General
investment) Reserve Reserve Total
$ $ $ $
April 1, 2007 15,833,262 3,647,236 (6,301,464) 13,179,034
Release from Reserves - (511,799) - (511,799)
Deficit for the year - - 5,492,569 5,492,569
March 31, 2008 15,833,262 3,135,437 (808,895) 18,159,804
Release from Reserves - (511,799) - (511,799)
Surplus for the year - - 24,273,150 24,273,150
March 31, 2009 15,833,262 2,623,638 23,464,255 41,921,155
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Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended March 31, 2009
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Deficit for the year before GOJ financing
Recurrent financing from Consolidated Fund
(Deficit)/Surplus for the year after GOJ financing
50% net surplus to Consolidated Fund

Net surplus/(deficit)

Adjustments:

Depreciation

(Increase)/decrease in receivables
Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities
Transfer from Donated Assets Reserve

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditure

Net cash used in investing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2009 2008
$ $
(82,820,700) (77,271,862)
131,367,000 88,257,000
48,546,300 10,985,138
(24,273,150) (5,492,569)
24,273,150 5,492,569
3,081,985 1,975,613
(30,606,690) (7,808,665)
40,728,899 22,424,910
(511,799) (511,799)
36,965,545 21,572,628

(11,383,720)

(7,127,152)

(11,383,720) (7,127,152)
25,581,825 14,445,476
27,365,172 12,919,696
52,946,997 27,365,172
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Identification

The Management Institute for National Development (MIND) was established
as an Executive Agency of the Government of Jamaica on April 1, 1999. The
core activities of the Agency are training, consultancy and research that
support the training and consultancy services. Non core activities include
facilities rental.

Statement of compliance

i

ii.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS). IPSASs are developed by the International Public Sector
Accounting Standards Board (IPSASB), an independent board of the
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC).

The preparation of the financial statements to conform with IPSAS
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, contingent assets and
contingent liabilities at the balance sheet date and the revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. The estimates and the underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and any adjustments that may be
necessary would be reflected in the year in which actual results are
known.

Significant accounting policies

i.

ii.

iii.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and are presented in Jamaica dollars ($), which is the
reporting currency of the Agency.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried on the balance sheet at fair value.
For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash at bank, in hand, and deposits.

Receivables

Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amounts less provision
made for impairment losses. A provision for impairment is established
when there is evidence that the entity will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
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Significant accounting policies (Cont’d}
iv. Accounts payable and accrued charges

Accounts payables are carried at cost for the supply of goods and
services and accruals are based on fair estimates of liabilities at the end
of the financial year. The amounts are payable within one year.

v. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Agency and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are charged to other operating expenses
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on assets is calculated on the straight-line basis at annual
rates that will write off the carrying value of each asset over the period of
its expected useful life. Annual depreciation rates or period over which
depreciation is charged are as follows:

Leasehold Property Improvement 20 years
Furniture, fixtures and Fittings 10 years
Computers S years
Office Equipment 10 years
Motor Vehicles 5 years

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically for impairment.
Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount.

v. Amortization of donated assets reserve

The reserve is written off on a straight line basis over the life of the
assets.

vi. Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present legal or

constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2009

Significent accounting policies {Cont’d)

settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity. The Agency’s financial instruments at March 31, 2006
were receivables and payables.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is fees earned and is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents amount recoverable
for services provided in the normal course of business. Deferred revenue
is a liability as at the balance sheet date related to training fees for which
revenue has not yet been earned.

Subvention is recognized when it is received.

Interest revenue is recognised in the income statement for all interest
bearing instruments on an accrual basis.

4. Property, Plant and Equipment

Furniture,
Leasehold Motor Office Fixtures &
Improvements Vehicles Computers  Equipment Fittings TOTAL
$ $ $ $ $
Cost
April 1, 2008 10,328,084 243,763 11,395,031 7,955,823 4,770,169 34,692,870
Additions 695,987 3,125,384 4,349,701 2,016,245 1,196,403 11,383,720
Disposals - - - = - -
March 31, 2009 11,024,071 3,369,147 15,744,732 9,972,068 5,966,572 46,076,690
Accumulated Depreciation
April 1, 2008 2,011,392 98,910 10,971,498 3,732,028 3,951,332 20,765,160
Current charges 533,604 397,592 723,624 904,636 522,529 3,081,985
Disposal - = = - - -
March 31, 2009 2,544,996 496,502 11,695,122 4,636,664 4,473,861 23,847,145
NBV - March 31,
2009 8,479,075 2,872,645 4,049,610 5,335,404 1,492,711 22,229,445
NBV - March 31,
2008 8,316,692 144,853 423,633 4,223,795 818,837 13,927,710
il
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5. ‘'Trade and other receivables

Accounts Receivables - Corporate
Accounts Receivables — Self Sponsored

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Other Receivables

6. Cash and cash equivalents

General Expenditure
Appropriation-In-Aid
Payroll

Foreign Exchange

MIND Development Fund
Petty Cash

7. Payables and Accruals

Trade Payables
Accruals
Payroll Payables

2009 2008
$ $
71,615,077 46,658,058
48,822,207 33,701,029
120,437,284 80,359,087
(53,984,237) (44,742,872)
66,453,047 35,616,215
(16,583) .
66,436,464 35,616,215
2009 2008
$ $
11,024,378 4,705,292
37,538,994 21,738,163
4,282,938 796,549
95,687 115,830
. 4,338
5,000 5,000
52,946,997 27,365,172
2009 2008
$ $
8,615,761 3,795,234
1,000,000 553,241
6,298,809 1,223,221
15,914,570 5,571,696
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8. Employee Benefits

200¢ 2008
$ $
Gratuity 913,660 1,377,946
Vacation leave accrual 2,066,441 1,667,239
Performance incentive provision 6,251,435 3,156,330
9,231,536 6,201,515

9, GOJ 50% Contribution

This represents the 50% of surplus by the Agency to be paid into the
Consolidated Fund in accordance with the Financial Instructions to Executive
Agencies and advance for budgetary support.

$
Balance as at 1st April 2008 27,798,109
Amounts recognized during the year 24,273,150
Payments during the year r
Balance as at 31st March 2009 52,071,259

10. Financial Risk Management

The Agency’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risks
(including currency risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
risk and operational risk. The Agency’s overall risk management policies are
established to identify and analyse risk exposure and to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risk. The risk management framework is
based on guidelines set by management and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Agency’s financial performance.

a. Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate

as a result of changes in market prices. Deposits would be affected by
this risk.

57 )



ANNUAL REPORT 2008 - 2009 | FINANGIAL

Managing Performance Excellence

Financial Report

2008 - 2009

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2009

Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)
b. Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Agency’s
currency risk arises from its foreign currency bank account.

2009 2008
$ $
Foreign exchange bank account 95,687 115,830
95,687 115,830

c. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the interest earned on interest bearing
bank account balances will fluctuate due to changes in market interest
rate. The Agency’s interest rate risk arises from deposits as follows:

2009 2008
$ $
Cash resources (excluding cash in hand) 52,941,997 27,365,172

52,941,997 27,365,172

c. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an Agency will encounter difficulty in
raising funds to meet its commitments associated with financial
instruments. The risk is managed by maintaining sufficient cash and
cash equivalents balances.

d. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial
loss. The Agency has the following cash resources:

2009 2008
$ $
Cash and cash equivalents 52,946,997 27,365,172
Accounts receivable and advances 66.436,464 35,616,215

119,383,461 62,981,387
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11. GOJ Capital Investment
The initial capital investment from Government of Jamaica is represented by
the value of the fixed assets when the Agency was granted Executive Agency
status at April 1, 1999. This has now been converted to equity.

12. Donated assets reserve

This represents the residual value of the assets donated to the Agency by the
Government of Jamaica and other multinationals.

13. Staff costs

2009 2008
$ $
Gross Salary & Other Allowances 109,208,454 87,114,631
Employee benefits 9,231,536 6,201,515
118,439,990 93,316,146

Staff emoluments

a. Employees in receipt of emoluments of $1 million and over per annum as
at the financial year ended March 31, 2009 are:

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SALARY RANGE

$'000
3 1.00 - 1.25
8 1.25 - 1.50
2 1.50 - 1.75
5 1.75 - 2.00
6 2.00 -2.25
8 2.25~2.50
Nit 2.50 - 2.75
1 2.75 - 3.00
1 3.00 - 3.25
Nil 3.25 - 3.50
Nil 3.50 - 3.75
3 3.75 - 4.00
Nil 4.00 - 4.25
Nil 4.25 - 4.50
Nil 4.50 - 4.75
1 4.75 - 5.00
Total 38
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15.

Goods and Services

Food and Drink

Books

Magazines & Subscriptions
Stationery

Petrol

Cooking Fuel

Local Consultancy
Advertising

Postal and Courier
Insurance

Printing

Repairs and Maintenance
Pest Control

Toilet Articles

Waste Disposal Services
Training Expenses
Computer Supplies
Bank Charges

Security Services
Overdraft Interest
Other

Audit Fees

Premises Related Expenditure

Rental
Public utilities

' Repairs and maintenance

2009 2008
$ $
3,579,022 1,533,494
134,204 749,916
74,630 11,916
3,213,995 1,924,392
51,574 37,198
388,172 322,550
33,807,005 16,874,651
1,052,499 2,124,669
513,561 172,649
281,648 124,805
2,903,840 1,048,774
430,550 296,459
79,744 -
610,618 702,306
411,918 205,396
10,230,490 2,809,413
406,797 399,126
513,728 230,800
7,622,094 5,314,724
. 7,020
3,085,547 2,225,728
250,000 250,000
69,641,636 37,365,724
2009 2008
$ $
2,662,933 1,518,228
11,321,792 9,228,542
5,654,492 3,671,052
19,639,217 14,417,822
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STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROLS
2008/2009

The Management Institute for National Development’s Senior Management team accepts
responsibility for the Agency’s system of internal controls. Consequently, it has sought
to ensure the ongoing adequacy, robustness and effectiveness of its internal controls, with
the institutionalization of measures not limited to the following:

¢ The design and implementation of controls that enhance Agency operations;

¢ Development and updating of the Agency’s policies and procedures;

e Appointment of an Internal ‘Audit Function that monitors the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Agency’s governance, risk management and internal control
system;

¢ Implementation of the recommendations made by Internal and External Auditors
and Audit Committee; and

e Senior Management’s continuous assessment of the Agency’s internal system of

control.

Notwithstanding the above, the Agency encountered limitations with its internal controls
during the 2008/2009 financial year, resulting from the loss of functionality with its
GMAX system. This necessitated the Agency implementing a manual system of
managing its accounting and financial operations, pursuant to the later acquisition and
use of ACCPAC. While this served to ensure the integrity of the Agency’s financial and
accounting records and strengthening of the internal controls for 2008/2009, it required
the recasting of the financials, a process which delayed the Auditors verification and

certification of the financial statement for the period.

MIND
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. Year . . Retirement Allowances .
Executive () Incentive Assigned Benefits (©) Benefits ($) ()
() Motor Vehicle )
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Chief Executive 2008/2009 | 4,500,000.00 893,851.88 398,250.00 5,792,101.88
Officer
Director Business | 2008/2009 | 3,100,000.00 796,500.00 3,896,500.00
Development
Director of 2008/2009 | 3,019,051.27 - 796,500.00 3,815,551.27
Learning
Director of 2008/2009 | 3,192,811.85 472,063.51 796,500.00 4,461,375.36
Finance &
Resources

Notes

1. No compensation was paid to members of the Advisory Board.
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RESPONDING
TODAY

PREPARING
TOMORROW

MIND s Strategic Plan 2009 -2013



his Plan conveys the consen-

presents and
mission, corporate goals, strategy and

insight and consensus of the execu-
tive and strategic management teams
and the strategic analysis of the
Institute’s capacity, unique compe-
tencies and its vast potential. The
plan reconciles observations and
expectations of our key stakeholders
viewed from the context of the exist-
ing mandate and the new demands
facing the public service of Jamaica.

Cognisant of the strategic role and
demands on the public service,
MIND recognises the need to adjust
its business model, and to reposition
its human resources and faculty to
address the new challenges of the
public service and the expectations
of its stakeholders. This is aimed at
underpinning and fast tracking the
on-going public sector modernisa-
tion programme so as to bring govern-
ment services in line with the high
expectations of citizens for value,
quality and relevance.

Against this backdrop, MIND's
management initiated a new strategic
planning process at the end of 2008
to incorporate the Kaplan and Norton
Balanced Scorecard Methodology as its
principal management tool, to
improve MIND's focus and align its
strategic plan with Government's
priorities.
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sual V|suaI|sat|on and dlrectlon of

outlines MTND’S V|5|on, -
to integrate these in departments

corecard based on the collective

This planning process allowed MIND
to better define its corporate and

__thematic goals focused on stake— »

der needs and expectatior

strategies and to highlight individual
and team roles, their accountabilities,
performance metrics, and desired
intra-departmental relationships for
maximum use of the organisation’s
resources and synergy.

The process used to develop this
strategic plan was highly participative,
encompassing several workshops,
working sessions with the executive
management, senior management
and the strategic planning committee,
which is a cross cutting staff forum
composed from all ranks. Additional
consultations and frank review
sessions were held with our key
stakeholders to inform and enrich
the plan leading to the revised vision
and mission statements.

It should be noted that the strategic
plan is being developed in consultation
with our key stakeholders, and in
alignment with several high level
government policy statements such
as Vision 2030, Medium Term Financial
Plan (MTFP), Millennium Development
Goals (MDG) and the governing Party
Manifesto.

Four thematic outcomes (Themes)
have been identified as the “pillars of
excellence” that will help MIND to
coordinate and focus its strategies,
and consequently, direct all staff
efforts and resources towards the
achievement of its mission.

These are:
Theme 1: Customer Satisfaction

and Approval

g "Excei tence =
Theme 3: Transform
and Professionaliszation
Theme 4: Resource Mobilization
and Management

OoN | earnina

The success of this five year strategic
plan recognises the importance of
engaging, communicating and satisfying
the legitimate expectations of stake-
holders.

“Cognisant of the
strategic role and
demands on the public
service sector, MIND
recognises the need to
adjust its business
model, and to
reposition its human
resources and faculty
to address the new
challenges of the
public service and the
expectations of its
stakeholders”




TODAY

[y

next five years

RESPONDING

PREPARING

Purpose of the Strategic Plan

Based on our research and best prac- aspects of performance management to
tices of our benchmark institutions lead the process and to build the culture for

around the world, MIND has decided
to adopt the strategic plan approach
in place of the traditional corporate
plan for two main reasons:

A Ty

2. This requirement implicates MIND as

public service trainer, to ready itself in all

strategic planning.

3. Our traditional approach underesti-

mated the importance of maintaining
balance between our internal and external

growth and the financials

2. The associated performance
metrics to facilitate alignment of
vision, mission, values, strateg
and resources. i

Thus, it is only when all th
perspectives are conside

al

|

The Strategic Plan Model
Vision
Mandate
. Values
Mission

l

Strategy

PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES

STRATEGIC ISSUES

The Strategic

2. It provides an I Issues

opportunity to

adopt the Balanced ‘ Balanced Scorecard ‘ The capacity of the

Scorecard and // 1 l public service has

Common Assess- Customer Internal Process Learning & Financial been St,retChed by

ment Frameworks in ‘ Perspective Perspective Growth Perspective the rapld Chan?ﬁs
in e

aligning our strate-

| l ]

occurring
economy pointing

gies and resources
with our customers’ ‘

Objectives, Measures, Targets, Initiatives

| to the urgent need

expectations, and

the opportunity to

embed a culture for

performance man-

agement with clear metrics to assess
our achievements in relation to our
needs and expectations of stake-
holders.

Thus, the proposed Strategic plan
represents a departure from the
Corporate Plan which has tended to
rely more on internal resources for its
development.

The strategic plan is also important
for three other reasons:

1. Government declared its inten-
tion to fast track performance man-
agement in the public service and to
require public service institutions to
closer relate their services to stake-
holders’ values and expectations.

l l l !

for training and

’ Results = Outcome = Impact

stakeholders and translating the functional
requirements into our corporate metrics to
achieve the desired results.

Plan approach and methodology

MIND's Strategic Plan follows the basic
format of the Corporate Plan which
outlines the organisation vision, mission,
values, strategies, programmes and the
logical framework for implementation.
However, two notable additions are
included:

1. The Balanced Scorecard, developed
by Kaplan and Norton which stresses the
importance and interaction of four
stakeholder  perspectives, namely:
customer, the business model or internal
process, people or the learning and

| development at

senior  manage-
ment and strategic
levels. A More

comprehensive response requires a
revision to MIND's structure, estab-
lishment, and upgrading of staff,
faculty, lecture rooms and sodal and
research facilities and the strengthen-
ing of our quality management
systems. The strategic plan and
budget anticipate this upgrading.

“The success of this five
year strategic plan recognises
the importance of engaging,
commumicating and satisfying
the legitimate expectations
of stakeholders™”
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ENVISIONING

an
EXPANDED

MIND has enjoyed unprecedented growth since
its establishment as an Executive Agency of the
Government of Jamaica, ten years ago in 1999.
While MIND has achieved a distinguished track
record of Human Resource

Development service to the [

public sector and the wider
community of stakeholders,
engaged in the mission of
establishing and maintaining
good governance in Jamaica
and the Caribbean, there is
much room for enhancement
and expansion.

For the past several years.
MIND has had to become
increasingly more resourceful
in responding to the need
for adequate physical and
other critical infrastructure 4
torespond tothe needs of
its stakeholder clients. Our
stakeholders are becoming
increasingly forthright and
trenchant in stating their
needs and staking their
claim to, among other needs,
MIND with:

an improved

- Adequate and satisfying classroom, social
facilities, services, environmental and
security provisions

- Expanded programme delivery options
and customer access

- Provision of a conducive environment for
learning and innovation

- Streamline and upgrade of on-campus &
distance learning products, systems and
support services
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Physical
& Virtual

Among the steps which MIND has taken to address
this, is the development of weekend programs
with courses offered on Saturdays, courses offered
online, and the leasing of new and expanded space
to house the MIND Mandeville Campus. In addition
to this expansion on weekends, online, and with new
campus facilities, a considerable number of courses
have been moved to other locations off-campus,
due to a lack of on-campus space. Itisimportant to
note that the attendance pattern at MIND is
bi-modal - mornings and evenings (up to 8:30 PM
daily) - and MIND Online utilizes the “blended”
approach requiring some amount of direct,
classroom intervention.
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ENVISIONING
an
EXPANDED

MIND stands on the brink of a new
future, full of promise and opportunity,
with increased potential for meeting
the needs of its constituents. The lack
of adequate facilities would not only
ensure that potential is not realised,
but it would also necessitate a retreat

Physical
& Virtual

Its ambitious agenda of needs,
encompassing facilities, special
institutional strengthening enrichment
initiatives, and operating support, reflects
MIND’s historic commitment to serve its
stakeholders and the larger world
community, in the valuable and critical

from the types [ . a0

and levels of =
service which |
have been
planned for
the coming
years, in direct
response  to
requests from
our stakeholders.
It would also %
stifle the

potential of an
institution
which, having
prevailed, in
spite of the
challenges, for over ten years, has
much more room and opportunity to
grow to become the best that it can be.

The proposed MIND Strategic Plan,
complemented by the Proposed
MIND Expansion presents this institution
with a rare and wonderful opportunity
to extend and deepen its commitment
to developing human resource excellence
and leadership. It endeavours to
support MIND's highest priority needs
and to continue the extraordinary
momentum that has characterised
the Institute’s growth for over a
decade.

mission of the developing men and
women, not just of competence, but
also of character, in service to nation
building and the advancement of
good governance.

It is our hope that upon presentation
and considered review of our vision for
the expansion of MIND, we will win
important stakeholder support, in
recognition of the potential of the
MIND to transform its institutional
capacity and capabilities, towards the
fulfillment of its mandate.
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Satisfying Stakeholder
Needs

oday’s MIND calls for more than just
developing and producing
quality products, pricing
them attractively, promoting
and distributing them among
target groups. More than anything
else, today’s MIND environment
demands a steadfast focus on
developing, implementing and
utilizing effective strategies to gain
competitive advantage.These strat-
egies must be founded on the
principles of :

- Satisfied stakeholder needs
- Strengthen operational
efficiencies

- Create and delivering
quality service consistently

- Respond to stakeholder
need to feel respected,
valued and valuable

- Fulfill the Mandate

pment

i

MIND is currently operating in a
dynamic global environment - emerg-
ing markets, new customers, new tech-
nologies, increasing local, regional and
global competition, increasing diversity
in customer needs and wants, rapidly
changing political and socio-cultural
environment that impacts MIND’s
performance.

The current marketing situation and
trends, require nothing less than the
most critical thinking, focused analysis,
planning, implementation and control,
to build and maintain beneficial
exchanges with target groups for the
purpose of achieving successful
outcomes.

In the context of visioning a new strategic
construct to support a more dynamic
and effective market positioning for MIND,
the concept of satisfying stakeholder
needs, creating stakeholder value and
satisfaction and delivering that satisfac-
tion profitably, is not only necessary,
but a vital imperative.
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Since stakeholder satisfaction is at
the heart of the emerging new MIND,
then the MIND success demands a
synergy of strategic alignment with all
performance areas, and a steadfast,
focused approached to engineering
cohesive and coherentimplementation

of strategies.

The continuing success of MIND
requires the full integration of
resources and teamwork that
extends beyond the individual, Unit
and/or department tasks, to the full
involvement of the organisational
“whole7in order to result in meaningful
impact.

Essentially therefore, the emerging
new MIND, will see an organisation,
lead by a select group of professionals
with the requisite experience and
expertise that qualify their selection
to the team, that leads and manages
the business and responsibilities of
the whole organisation, and totally
focused on, motivated by, and
absolutely dedicated to anticipating,
responding and satisfying stake-
holder needs.







Vision 2030 JamMmailca | NATIOMAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

A VISION

The Yision

From bustling townships and cities to the “irie" countryside, we are g people of tremendous
God-given talent and potential. Qut of diverse hardships we remain strong and deeply
spiritual. fomaica, an island gem basking in brilliant sunshine where cool waters coscade
from the mountains to the fertile soiis of the valleys befow.

As a united family at home and abroad, we commit to a vision in which:
= we ensure equitable access to modern education and tralning appropriate o the
needs of each person and the nation
* we provide quality and timely healthcare for the mental, physical and emotional weli-
being of our paople
* our children and our children's children can continue to enjoy the unigue
environmental and cultural reasures of our island home
= we seek out and support the entrepreneurial talents and creadvity of our people
= we create prosperity through the sustainable use and management of our natural
resources
* we creare and advance national prosperity and security by vigorously seeking,
learming, generating, and applying scientific and technological knowledge
= wie provide full access to efficient and reliable infrastructure and services
= wie are the premier destination to visit and do business
* we hold to and build on those positive core values and attitudes that have made us
distincely |amaican
* we resolve conflices through dialogue and mediaton
* we troat cach other with respect and dignicy
= we all have a meaningful voice in the decision-making of our country
* we create a safe and secure society
= we know our rights and responsibilities and stand equal befora the law
=  Qwr families contribute positively to the society and nurture, protect, encourage and
support thelr members
We especially seek to create a secure future for our vulnerable population in
ensuring that:
» each child has equal opportunity te develop his or her full potential through access o
the best care, affection and pratection
« our youth are empowered to contribute meaningfully in building and strengthening the
cammunities ta which they belong
*  ourelderly and persons with disabilicies are fully integrated within soclery, have access o
appropriate care and support services and are treated as valuable human resources
* no one falls inte, or remains in paverty for lack of adequate support

“One love, one heart, one Jamaica”

Ciasaalon THE MLACE OF CHOICE TO LIVE WORE, WAISE FAMILIES AND DO DUSINESS




Management Institue for
National Development

Training for Human Resource Excellence

7999 - 2000

YOUP!

Traiming Customizedto fitOrgant pectic Neats

Wisace

MIND shall provide the highest
quality training and consultancy
to enhance the efficient and
effective delivery of service by
our clients.

Urse

MIND will be the centre of
excellence in the Caribbean
for strengthening Human
Resource capacity to support
sustainable development.

aiND

Kingston Campus

Mandeville Campus

()

Bt
Gertificate Courses]

235A Old Hope Road, Kingston 6, Jamaica W.1.
Tel: (876) 927-1761 - Fax: (876) 977-4311

E-mail: customerservice@mind.edu jm visit our website: www.mind.edu.jm

5 Perth Road, Mandeville, Manchester, Jamaica W.I.
Tel: (876) 962-2183/0428 - Fax: (876) 962-1008
E-mail: customerservicemmlc@mind.edu.jm





